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Marianna Olding

From: Jessica Read
Sent: Tuesday, 18 April 2023 11:41 AM
To: FOI
Subject: 01

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Synced to SharePoint

From: Jessica Read  
Sent: Friday, February 3, 2023 10:54 AM 
To: Commonwealth‐State Reporting and Review Team <
Subject: FW: Today's Financial Review [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Good morning team, 

I just wanted to touch base and acknowledge this email from Michael and the article in the AFR this morning. 

As Michael notes, it is a bit tough seeing these issues play out. Just a reminder that I’m here if you’d like to raise 
anything with me, and the Commission also provides support through the resources Michael provided links to below. 

Cheers Jess  

Jessica Read | Assistant Commissioner | Commonwealth State Reporting and Review
Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  

From: Michael Brennan  >  
Sent: Friday, 3 February 2023 9:22 AM 
To: All Staff ‐ >; All Staff ‐  > 
Subject: Today's Financial Review [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Colleagues 

As many of you will have seen reported in today’s Financial Review, Treasury will be overseeing a review into claims 
of sexual harassment and sexism at the Commission. The review is being undertaken by an experienced consultant 
and is commencing as soon as possible. This comes as a result of allegations made to the Treasurer and Minister for 
Finance. 

We learned of the investigation yesterday afternoon. Clearly the Government, Treasury and we at the PC need to 
take the allegations very seriously. We will of course cooperate fully with the investigation as it proceeds. 

I know it is tough seeing these issues play out publicly. It is really important that we allow the process to run its 
course.  
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Across the Commission, all of us have worked to create and maintain a culture that is inclusive, respectful and 
professional. That, of course, remains our priority, along with supporting staff wellbeing.  
 
If anyone would like to seek confidential, professional support at this time, you can access Carfi (1300 737 403 or via 
email  ) or our Employee Assistance Program (EAP).     
 
I thank you all for your patience and cooperation and ongoing hard work. 
  
MB 
 
 
Michael Brennan | Chair 
Productivity Commission 
Level 8, Two Melbourne Quarter, 697 Collins Street, Docklands  VIC 3008 | Locked Bag 2, Collins Street East, Melbourne VIC 
8003  
Tel:   | Mobile   
Website: www.pc.gov.au|Email:   
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
Tel:  | Mobile   
Website: www.pc.gov.au|Email:   
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4 National Circuit, Barton ACT 2600 
p.  |  

pc.gov.au 

     

 

  

 
 

    The Productivity Commission acknowledges the Traditional Owners of Country throughout Australia and their continuing connection to land, 
waters and community. We pay our respects to their Cultures, Country and Elders past and present.  

This e‐mail and attachments (if any) is intended for the original addressee only. If you are not the intended recipient, any use or dissemination of this communication is 
prohibited. Please advise the sender by return e‐mail and delete this e‐mail. 
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Ngunnawal Country 
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
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We’d like to circulate some generic talking points to Managers following the grad induction yesterday, where the 
media article was touched on. Any issues with this being circulated? 

 

Hi everyone  

Noting the announcement on Friday that an independent review is being undertaken into claims of sexual 
harassment and sexism at the Commission, we recognise that supervisors and managers may be approached by staff 
if they have questions or concerns.  

Attached are some talking points which may be useful in navigating the conversation and addressing concerns.  

Yesterday, HR acknowledged the independent review in the HR induction with the Graduates and advised them that 
they are encouraged to speak to their supervisors/managers or HR if they have queries or concerns. HR have also 
checked in with the Graduates’ buddy’s to provide them with a buddy guideline, and recognising that staff wellbeing 
is a shared responsibility and that they can encourage new starters to speak to their supervisors/managers or HR if 
they need support.  

Please reach out if you have questions.  

Kind regards  

Your HR Team 

 

Talking points 

 Last week, we were advised that an independent review is being undertaken, into claims of sexual harassment 
and sexism at the Commission.  
 

 The review will be undertaken by an experienced consultant and comes as a result of allegations made to the 
Treasurer and Minister for Finance. 

 
 The Commission will of course cooperate fully with the investigation as it proceeds. 

 
 The Commission is committed to ensuring a safe and respectful workplace for all, and to addressing issues as 

they arise.  
 

 External review mechanisms are an important part of the APS’ ethical framework.  
 

 Please refer to the Workplace Behaviour Policy and complaints procedures for further information.  
 
 Talk to manager if any queries. 

 
 
Jane Holmes  
Assistant Commissioner | Corporate Group 

 

Productivity Commission 
Wurundjeri, Woi-wurrung Country 
Level 8, 2MQ, 697 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008 
p.  |  

pc.gov.au 
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The Secretary has asked me to provide you with the letter he spoke with you about today.  The Terms of Reference 
for the review are attached to the letter. 
  
Ms de Silva has been advised that you have been informed about the review and she will contact you shortly. 
  
If you have any questions about the review process, please contact me. 
  
Regards 
  
Roxanne 
  
Roxanne Kelley 
Deputy Secretary 
Corporate and Foreign Investment Group 
P +   M   
   

 
   
treasury.gov.au  
Langton Crescent, Parkes ACT 2600 
Twitter | LinkedIn | Facebook 
  
The Treasury acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout Australia, and their continuing connection to land, 
water and community. We pay our respects to them and their cultures and to elders both past and present. 
  

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 
Legal Privilege 

Please Note: The information contained in this e-mail message and any attached files may be confidential 
information and may also be the subject of legal professional privilege.  If you are not the intended 
recipient, any use, disclosure or copying of this e-mail is unauthorised.  If you have received this e-mail by 
error please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail and delete all copies of this transmission 
together with any attachments. 
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Marianna Olding

From: Ralph Lattimore
Sent: Friday, 14 April 2023 4:59 PM
To: Ralph Lattimore
Subject: Copy of sms to Jane Melanie 4 Feb 2023

Hi Jane 
You may already know this, but I thought it appropriate to tell you. An allegation was made to the Treasurer of 
widespread sexual harassment and sexism in the PC that was claimed to be tolerated by management. There will be 
an independent investigation and you may be asked your views. Michael is taking the 'straight bat' approach of 
complete divulgence of anything relevant, and to act in good faith. Unfortunately someone leaked the investigation 
to the AFR, which then made it into an exclusive (by Rob Mizon), which you may want to look at. It certainly 
distressed quite a few staff the way it was written, but there is nothing we can do about that other than letting the 
independent review reach its conclusions.  
 
I hope in the meantime you are having a lovely break. Cheers Ralph 
Get Outlook for iOS 
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The information contained in this e-mail message and any accompanying files is or may be confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, any use, 
dissemination, reliance, forwarding, printing or copying of this e-mail or any attached files is unauthorised. This e-mail is subject to copyright. No part of it 
should be reproduced, adapted or communicated without the written consent of the copyright owner. If you have received this e-mail in error please advise 
the sender immediately by return e-mail or telephone and delete all copies. Nine Group does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of any information 
contained in this e-mail or attached files. Internet communications are not secure, therefore Nine Group does not accept legal responsibility for the contents 
of this message or attached files. 
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Productivity Commission 
Wurundjeri, Woi-wurrung Country 
Level 8, 2MQ, 697 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008 
p.  |  

pc.gov.au 

     

 

Work days: I work flexibly, and may choose to send emails outside standard business hours. If so, I do not expect you 
to read or reply outside your standard hours. 
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Hi everyone  
  
Noting the announcement on Friday 3 February that an independent review will be undertaken into claims of sexual 
harassment and sexism at the Commission, we recognise that supervisors and managers may be approached by 
staff if they have questions or concerns.  
  
Below are some talking points which may be useful in navigating the conversation and addressing concerns.  
  
HR acknowledged the independent review in the HR induction with the Graduates and advised them that they are 
encouraged to speak to their supervisors/managers or HR if they have queries or concerns. HR have also checked in 
with the Graduates’ buddy’s to provide them with a buddy guideline, and in recognising that staff wellbeing is a shared 
responsibility, that they can encourage new starters to speak to their supervisors/managers or HR if they need 
support.  
  

Talking points 
        The Commission has been advised that an independent review will be undertaken, into claims of sexual 

harassment and sexism at the Commission.  
  

        The review will be undertaken by an experienced consultant and comes as a result of allegations made to the 
Treasurer and Minister for Finance. 

  
        The Commission will of course cooperate fully with the investigation as it proceeds. 

  
        The Commissions is yet to receive any further information regarding the review, and will communicate with staff 

when more information is provided. 
  

        The Commission is committed to ensuring a safe and respectful workplace for all, and to addressing issues as 
they arise.  

  
        External review mechanisms are an important part of the APS’ ethical framework.  

        All complaints, including anonymous complaints, are taken seriously. 
  

        Please refer to the Workplace Behaviour Policy and complaints procedures, along with our Media Policy for 
further information.   

  
        Please talk to your manager if you have any further queries. 

  
Please reach out if you have questions.  
  
Kind regards  
Your HR Team 
  

 

Human Resources 

HR Hub page 

 

pc.gov.au 

     

 

Contact the HR team: 
 for pay and entitlements, leave, superannuation, payslips and Aurion ESS 
 for current and upcoming recruitment activities, or resourcing matters 
 h  for all other HR matters 
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This e‐mail and attachments (if any) is intended for the original addressee only. If you are not the intended recipient, any use or dissemination of this communication is 
prohibited. Please advise the sender by return e‐mail and delete this e‐mail. 
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Jenny 
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Marianna Olding

From:
Sent: Monday, 6 February 2023 10:02 AM
To:
Subject: FW: Today's Financial Review [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL 

I had to send to  at home because she doesn’t work Fridays or Monday. 

From:    
Sent: Friday, 3 February 2023 10:41 AM 
To:   
Subject: RE: Today's Financial Review [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 

The AFR article has a big picture of Leonora  

 
Sexual harassment review ordered for top 
government advisory body 

 
Ronald MizenEconomics correspondent 
Feb 3, 2023 – 5.00am 
Save 
Share 

Treasury has commissioned an independent review into the Productivity Commission 
after complaints from staff, including a senior executive, who said management failed 
to deal with sexual harassment and sexism. 

The Australian Financial Review has spoken to several current and former staff who 
claimed the PC had a history of sexual harassment and sexism, that complaints fell on 
deaf ears and perpetrators were not held accountable. 

Most of the group wished to remain anonymous for fear that being identified publicly 
would hurt their careers, but all said they would go on the record with a reviewer. 

#001-024
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One former PC employee last month wrote a letter to Treasurer Jim Chalmers and 
Minister for Women Katy Gallagher offering to provide details of sexual harassment 
and sexism that had not been properly dealt with. 

“Multiple women have left the organisation because it has protected sexual predators 
and not kept them safe,” the letter said. 
Dr Chalmers sought advice and referred the matter to Treasury Secretary Steven 
Kennedy, who commissioned an independent review. 

In a speech delivered at a Canberra Christmas party in 2021, a senior female manager 
publicly aired internal dissent at the PC. 

Needs to be called out 

Citing stories such as that of Grace Tame as showing how systems had protected 
wrongdoers, people present said the PC’s director of media publications and web, 
Leonora Nicol, did not hold back. 

“I would say to all the men in this room, it’s not enough to be a nice guy and not do 
those things,” she said. 

“You need to call out other men. Even if those men are your friends, your colleagues or 
both. Hold men accountable for their behaviour. 

“Imagine a scenario when a known predator was in the workplace and every woman 
who started there was warned by others because management didn’t deal with the 
situation, despite several on the record complaints. 

“What sort of message does that send to the men in the office about what is acceptable 
behaviour in the workplace, and what does that say to the women in the office about 
how they and their safety are valued?” 

Ms Nicol – who joined the organisation in 2014 – said the quotes attributed to her were 
accurate, and even though she had been told the issues would be looked into, she was 
“saddened and disappointed” about the response. 

“Not even a generic statement was made to staff that the Productivity Commission 
supported a safe work environment free from harassment,” she said. 

Ms Nicol said the response to these matters was “a shame” because in many other ways 
the PC had a great culture: “Egalitarian and honest and friendly. Best federal 
government agency I’ve ever worked for,” she said. 
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The letter sent to Dr Chalmers last month expressed similar concerns, and called for 
an external probe into complaints similar to the High Court. 

In late-2019, the High Court appointed investigator Vivienne Thom to look into 
allegations against former justice Dyson Heydon after a group of women came forward 
with stories of workplace misconduct. 

“Women in the organisation have taken it on themselves to warn female graduates to 
avoid certain male staff members because management and the chair have not taken 
sufficient action and internal processes are not functioning properly,” the letter said. 

“Indeed, management and [human resources] have retaliated against some victims who 
have reported harassment.” 

A spokeswoman said the PC had been advised of the Treasury investigation “and we 
will fully co-operate with the process,” she said. 

Recasting the PC’s role 

The probe into workplace culture comes as Dr Chalmers prepares to recast the role of the 
PC. The treasurer has been quietly canvassing experts for reform ideas that could be 
implemented later this year. 

Dr Chalmers has been working behind the scenes for months on proposals to overhaul 
the government’s chief independent economic adviser, including looking overseas at 
alternative operating models. 

Although the Australian Council of Trade Unions has called for the abolition of the 
Productivity Commission, Dr Chalmers has indicated he favours reforming it 
by broadening and deepening its work on economic policy, and keeping a central focus on 
boosting productivity. 

The changes come as part of a broader push to review and reform the nation’s key 
economic processes and institutions to ensure they remain fit for purpose, after what 
many in Labor view as a decade of neglect. 

This push includes the independent review of the Reserve Bank of Australia, which is 
due to hand down its findings to the Treasurer next month; changes to the timing and 
development of intergenerational reports; the introduction of an annual wellbeing 
budget; and the creation of an evaluator general. 
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Independent review of workplace culture at the Productivity Commission 
(the Review)  

Information for those participating, or considering whether to participate, in 
the Review  

Why is this Review happening? 

Following an allegation of a culture of sexual harassment and sexism at the Productivity 
Commission (PC), Treasury has engaged an experienced independent consultant, Natasha 
de Silva, to undertake an initial Review of these issues.  

This Review is not a wide-ranging examination of these issues, but rather an initial 
assessment of the allegation with a view to determining whether there is a need for further 
action. The Review also aims to gain an initial understanding of the workplace culture at PC 
with respect to sexual harassment and sexism and how the PC responds to complaints of 
this nature.   

As an initial Review, the Reviewer will seek to finalise it within a relatively short period of 
time, subject to the availability of individuals who wish to participate.  

Who is conducting the Review? 

Natasha de Silva is the Principal of Intersection, an external independent gender equality 
and workplace culture expert with over 20 years’ experience. Natasha has deep experience 
in examining issues of bullying, discrimination, harassment and other inappropriate 
behaviours in the workplace and the impact of these on workplace cultures.  

Natasha in a previous role led the Respect@Work National Inquiry into Sexual Harassment 
in Australian Workplaces (2020) and the Independent Review into Commonwealth 
Parliamentary Workplaces (2021) in addition to several other reviews.  

Who can be involved in the Review? 

Participation in the Review is voluntary. All current PC staff are able to participate either 
through a one-on-one interview with the Reviewer, which can be arranged through emailing 
admin@intersection.work for a time that is convenient to you, or by providing written 
information to the Reviewer. Interviews may occur by videoconference, telephone or in 
person and as a guide take approximately 60 minutes though they may be shorter or longer. 
People who wish to offer views or experience in writing may do so by sending an email to 
the same address admin@intersection.work  

Former employees of the PC are also invited to participate in the Review. 

#001-028a
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The Reviewer will also be meeting with PC management.  
 
Individuals who participate in the Review will be afforded natural justice and procedural 
fairness (for example, a person named in an allegation will have an opportunity to respond 
to that allegation) and may bring a support person or representative to a meeting with the 
Reviewer if they wish.  
 
Will you protect my privacy?  
 
These issues are sensitive and can raise difficulties or distress for some people. Creating a 
safe environment in which people can voluntarily share their experience and views on the 
workplace and ensuring participants’ well-being is essential to the review approach. 
 
Participation by current and former PC staff in the Review is on a voluntary basis and may 
be on an identified, de-identified and/or confidential basis as per your personal preference. 
If you choose to participate, but later change your mind, you can withdraw at any time. 
 
If you provide your information on a confidential and/or de-identified basis, the Reviewer 
will maintain your privacy. If you request confidentiality regarding your contribution to the 
Review, the Reviewer will not include your personal details in the Review report or provide 
your details to Treasury or the PC.  
 
The Reviewer is assessing the veracity of the allegation/s and they are able to make 
recommendations about further action or referral to other authorities. If further action or 
referral results in any legal actions, the details of individuals may need to be disclosed. If 
such recommendations emerge from the Review, a discussion about disclosure will be held 
with the relevant individuals  
 
It is possible that material held by the Commonwealth relating to this Review (e.g., the 
Review report) could be the subject of a request under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 
(FOI Act). In the event of such a request, the Commonwealth will rely on all relevant 
exemptions in the FOI Act to protect non-disclosure of all confidential and other sensitive 
information in that material.   
 
How will you use my information?  
 
The Reviewer will use information provided in interviews or in writing to inform the initial 
assessment of the allegations in respect to sexual harassment and sexism with a view to 
determining whether there is a need for further action. The information will also be used to 
assess the workplace culture at PC with respect to sexual harassment and sexism and how 
the PC responds to complaints of these issues.  
 
The Reviewer will provide a Review report to the Secretary of the Treasury. The report may 
contain recommendations and Treasury may seek advice or take further action in response 
to the report. 
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I have a question about participating in the Review, who do I contact? 
 
If you have any additional questions regarding participation in the Review, please send an 
email to: admin@intersection.work  
 
 
Who can I contact if I need help or support now? 

 
National support services and information for sexual harassment, sexual assault and 
mental health: 

 
1800RESPECT (Phone: 1800 737 732) can provide counselling 24-hours a day, 7 days a week.  
Website: https://www.1800respect.org.au/  
 
Lifeline 24-hour crisis support and suicide prevention 
Phone: 13 11 14 Website: https://www.lifeline.org.au/  
 
beyondblue Mental health support 
Ph: 1300 224 636 
Website: http://www.beyondblue.org.au/  
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Marianna Olding

From: Jane Holmes
Sent: Tuesday, 21 February 2023 1:39 PM
To: Lisa Studdert; 
Subject: FW: Productivity Commission – update on review for former employees [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]
Attachments: Information Sheet for PC employees 230220.pdf

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

FYI 

Jane Holmes | Assistant Commissioner | Corporate Group | p
Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  
 

From: Jane Holmes  
Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 1:38 PM 
Subject: FW: Productivity Commission – update on review for former employees [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive] 
 

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

Hello all 

Further to the initial advice below, I am writing to update on the independent review examining allegations of sexism 
and sexual harassment at the Commission in recent years.  

Opportunity to participate: 

The reviewer, Ms Natasha de Silva, has advised that she is open to contact from former staff who may wish to 
contribute to the review examining allegations of sexism and sexual harassment at the Commission in recent years. 
This may include participating in an interview, or submitting written information.   

Ms de Silva has provided the attached information sheet with further details on the process, including her contact 
details. If you wish to wish to participate in this review, please reach out to Ms de Silva by close of business, next 
Monday 27 February 2023.   

Further updates and wellbeing support: 

We understand that processes such as this can be difficult for some, and remind you of the wellbeing support 
available (as per details below).  

With regards 
Jane 

Jane Holmes  
Assistant Commissioner | Corporate Group 

 

Productivity Commission 
Wurundjeri, Woi-wurrung Country 
Level 8, 2MQ, 697 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008 
p. 

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
 The Commission has been advised that an independent review will be undertaken, into claims of sexual 

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

 
 The Commissions is yet to receive any further information regarding the review, and will communicate with staff 

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
 All complaints, including anonymous complaints, are taken seriously. 

 
 Please refer to the Workplace Behaviour Policy and complaints procedures, along with our Media Policy for 

further information.   
 
 Please talk to your manager if you have any further queries. 

 
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
  for current and upcoming recruitment activities, or resourcing matters 
  for all other HR matters 
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Elsewhere and otherwise 
 

 
 
 

 

 
Regarding the independent review into an allegation of sexism and sexual harassment at the PC. You will recall my 
undertaking in previous messages to provide updates as available. This week, a number of PC management staff 
(including myself and Michael) met with the reviewer (Ms Natasha de Silva) and were able to share some detailed 
information and data on the PC’s workplace behaviour policies and processes, along with data such as our staff 
census results. These were productive discussions. The review is ongoing and we understand a report will be 
provided to Treasury (which commissioned the review) in the coming weeks. I will continue to provide you with any 
updates and advice when I can. 
 

 
Kind regards, 
Lisa 
 
 
 
Lisa Studdert  
Head Of Office | Executive 

 

Productivity Commission 
Ngunnawal Country 
4 National Circuit, Barton ACT 2600 
p.  |  

pc.gov.au 
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Marianna Olding

From: Lisa Studdert
Sent: Friday, 17 February 2023 5:54 PM
To: All PC Staff
Subject: Weekly HOO Update - Friday 17 February [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL 

Dear Colleagues, 
 

 
 

  
 
An important event this week was Senate Estimate’s hearings with the Commission appearing before the Economics 
Legislation Committee on Wednesday evening. Michael and Alex fielded questions from several senators on a 
variety of topics that included   

 and the review of the allegation of sexual harassment and sexism at the PC.   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
On Monday of this week I provided you with some information about how to contact the reviewer appointed to 
consider the allegations of sexism and sexual harassment at the PC. I have received some questions about the 
process following my message and have put those to Ms de Silva but not yet had a response. Beyond that I can 
advise that we in management have not had any further information or engagement with the reviewer. As I 
indicated previously, I will update you regularly and whenever I can.  
 

 
 
 

#001-043
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
Sent: Tuesday, 14 February 2023 3:33 PM
To: Neil Byron; jennyzahar@gmail.com; 
Cc: Jane Holmes
Subject: FW: From Head of Office [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL 

Dear Audit and Risk Committee members, 

As the new Head of Office I am writing to introduce myself. I started in the role last Monday (6 Feb). 

I am looking forward to meeting you at tomorrow’s meeting. 

In advance of the discussion at Agenda Item 3(i) I thought I would share the email I sent to all staff late yesterday on 
this matter.  

With kind regards, 
Lisa 

Lisa Studdert | Head Of Office | Executive | 
Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  

From: Lisa Studdert 
Sent: Monday, 13 February 2023 4:35 PM 
To: All Staff ‐   All Staff ‐ 
Subject: From Head of Office [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Dear Colleagues, 

In my message to you last Tuesday I acknowledged the announcement of an independent review, commissioned by 
Treasury, following the reporting of allegations regarding sexual harassment and sexism at the Commission. 

I am writing now with some information about that review. It is being conducted by Ms Natasha de Silva, Principal, 
Intersection Pty Ltd. 

Ms de Silva commenced the review process last week and is now open to contact from staff who may wish to 
contribute to the review examining allegations of sexism and sexual harassment at the Commission in recent years. 

Contact details are below. Ms de Silva has asked that any information staff want to contribute be via the email 
address by cob next Monday 20 February given the tight time frame for this process. 

Natasha de Silva 
Principal 
Intersection Pty Ltd 
E admin@intersection.work  
W www.intersection.work  

A reminder that you can also seek confidential, professional support through Carfi (1300 737 403 or via email 
or our Employee Assistance Program (EAP). Please also recall you can speak to a PCCC 

member or union representative . 

As noted last week, I will continue to give you updates and information as it comes to hand. 

001-044
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Marianna Olding

From: Catherine Andersson
Sent: Thursday, 20 April 2023 11:28 AM
To: FOI
Subject: Request 001: FW: From Head of Office [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

From: Catherine Andersson
Sent: Friday, February 17, 2023 5:07 PM 
To: Lisa Studdert 
Cc: Ana Markulev  Jane Holmes 
Subject: RE: From Head of Office [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Thanks Lisa – appreciate your response on this. 
Cheers 
Catherine 

Catherine Andersson She/Her | Assistant Commissioner | Closing the Gap Review and Reporting Group | p. 

Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  

From: Lisa Studdert
Sent: Friday, February 17, 2023 5:06 PM 
To: Catherine Andersson
Cc: Ana Markulev  Jane Holmes 
Subject: RE: From Head of Office [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Catherine 
On this matter, wanted to acknowledge your email and the points raised. They seem valid and reasonable to me.  
I have not heard from the reviewer this week except for a brief exchange on Monday before I sent out my email. 
I am intending to talk to Treasury first part of next week about where things are up to and to indicate to them we have 
some feedback on the process to date.  

Will do everything I can to provide timely information/updates – as/when I have them. 
Thank you for taking the time to share information below, 
Lisa 

Lisa Studdert | Head Of Office | Executive | p. 
Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  
  

From: Catherine Andersson 
Sent: Friday, February 17, 2023 11:08 AM 
To: Lisa Studdert 
Cc: Ana Markulev   Jane Holmes 
Subject: FW: From Head of Office [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

001-048







[To Anna Heaney] 

[3/02 9:00 am] Jessica Read 

Morning  - will there be communications with staff about the AFR front page article? I'm already 

getting emails.  

[3/02 9:00 am] Anna Heaney 

Yes. From Michael  

[3/02 9:01 am] Jessica Read 

Personally its quite upsetting / unsettling to read so I can understand why staff concerned 

[3/02 9:05 am] Anna Heaney 

I’m in the office today. Happy to chat.  

[3/02 9:37 am] Anna Heaney 

all SES meeting invite coming 

[3/02 11:01 am] Jessica Read 

I've emailed the csrr team following on from Michael's email - do you think it would be appropriate 

to follow up schools too? 

[3/02 11:02 am] Anna Heaney 

yes, that is a really good idea 
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
  for pay and entitlements, leave, superannuation, payslips and Aurion ESS 
  for current and upcoming recruitment activities, or resourcing matters 
  for all other HR matters 
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Marianna Olding

From: Human Resources
Sent: Thursday, 30 March 2023 2:09 PM
To:

Rosalyn Bell
Cc: Human Resources; Jane Holmes; Lisa Studdert; 
Subject: DRAFT Outcomes - PCCC Meeting 1, 2023 [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Attachments: Draft Outcomes - PCCC Meeting 1 - 2023.docx

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

OFFICIAL 

Hi all,  

Please see attached the draft outcomes for the February PCCC meeting. 

We would be grateful if you could please review and provide any feedback to  by close of business 
Monday 3 April 2023. Once finalised, they will be placed on SharePoint for all staff to access.  

Kind regards, 

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
 for all other HR matters 
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Kind regards 
 

From: Michael Brennan    
Sent: Friday, 3 February 2023 9:22 AM 
To: All Staff ‐  ; All Staff ‐  > 
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
Level 8, Two Melbourne Quarter, 697 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008 | Locked Bag 2, Collins Street East, Melbourne VIC 8003 
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
Sent: Monday, 20 February 2023 5:21 PM
To: Anna Heaney; 
Subject: RE: Talking points to support supervisors/ELs/managers [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL 

Yep, we checked with and there’s no updates 
  

Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  
 

  

From: Anna Heaney  >  
Sent: Monday, 20 February 2023 4:46 PM 
To:  >;  > 
Subject: RE: Talking points to support supervisors/ELs/managers [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 

Yes, if it comes up. 

Check with HR that there are no updates but I’m pretty sure this is it. 

A 

Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  
 

From:    
Sent: Monday, 20 February 2023 2:04 PM 
To: Anna Heaney  >;  > 
Subject: FW: Talking points to support supervisors/ELs/managers [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 

Hi Anna 

Are you comfortable with us using these talking points if asked by interviewees about the review? 

Are there any updates since Tuesday which we should be aware of? 

Cheers 

  

Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  
 

  

From: Human Resources  >  
Sent: Tuesday, 14 February 2023 11:24 AM 
To: SES ‐  ; SES ‐  >;   
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> 
Subject: Talking points to support supervisors/ELs/managers [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

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
Sent: Friday, February 3, 2023 9:02 AM 
To: 
Subject: RE: Fin Review article [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Hi 

I agree this is disappointing (and quite upsetting to read) – I have followed up and I think there will be 
some all-staff communication shortly. 

Cheers Jess 

Jessica Read | Assistant Commissioner | Commonwealth State Reporting and Review 
Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  

From: 
Sent: Friday, 3 February 2023 8:49 AM 
To:  Jessica Read 
Subject: Fin Review article [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

FYI 

Disappointing for staff to learn about this first in the Financial Review this morning (page one no less!). 

Productivity Commission sexual harassment claims: Review ordered by Treasury after complaints 
(afr.com) 

Regards 

#001-070
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[03/02 12:10] Patrick Jomini 

ok, thanks  I'm worried about the AFR article and the team  

[03/02 12:11] Patrick Jomini 

quick chat?  

[03/02 12:11] 

Sure 

#001-071



WhatsApp exchange between Alex Robson and Michael Brennan, 3 Feb 2023 
#001-072
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Deadline for a response is 530pm. 
 
Sincerely 
Ron 
 
 
‐‐  
Ronald Mizen  
Economics Correspondent 

     M    m      m  
  R

  
M +61 (0) 409 447 025  
A Suite 115, Parliament House, Canberra, ACT, 2600 
E ronald.mizen@afr.com 

   
  

  
 

m  
   

   

 

    
 M  

  
   

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

From: Michael Brennan
Sent: Friday, 28 April 2023 3:24 PM
To: FOI
Subject: FW: AFR Media Enquiry [SEC=OFFICIAL]

From: Michael Brennan  
Sent: Thursday, February 2, 2023 5:15 PM 
To:  ; Rosalyn Bell 
Subject: RE: AFR Media Enquiry [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Yes, that should do it. 

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
Sent: Thursday, 2 February 2023 5:13 PM 
To: Michael Brennan  ; Rosalyn Bell  > 
Subject: RE: AFR Media Enquiry [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
Importance: High 

OFFICIAL 

Are you ok with me responding with?  

The Commission has been advised of the Treasury investigation and we will fully cooperate with the process. 

Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  

From: Michael Brennan  >  
Sent: Thursday, 2 February 2023 5:04 PM 
To: MPW (Media, Publications & Web – Productivity Commission) <MPW@pc.gov.au>; Rosalyn Bell 

> 
Subject: RE: AFR Media Enquiry [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Hi 

#001-075
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Marianna Olding

From: Michael Brennan
Sent: Friday, 28 April 2023 3:26 PM
To: FOI
Subject: FW: Today's Financial Review [SEC=OFFICIAL]

From: Catherine de Fontenay 
Sent: Friday, February 3, 2023 10:06 AM 
To: Michael Brennan 
Subject: Re: Today's Financial Review [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

Your email is very good, Michael. Hang in there.  

Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Michael Brennan  > 
Sent: Friday, February 3, 2023 9:22:02 AM 
To: All Staff ‐   All Staff ‐  > 
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
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, Ralph Lattimore   
Subject: Arrangements for meetings at PC on Monday (6/3) and Tuesday (7/3) [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Hi Natasha, 
Good to talk to you this morning. As discussed, I’m coming back to you with a proposal for meetings on Monday 
afternoon in Melbourne.  
 
Our proposal is: 
1:30pm-3:00pm: meeting with , Jane and myself – overview of Commission’s complaint handling process and 
workplace behaviour policies and the documentation of complaints and other related issues management in past 2-3 
years 
3.00pm – break 
3:30pm – Michael 
 
If you would like to make adjustments, either in advance or through the course of Monday afternoon, we are all quite 
flexible and will keep our time available for you, as needed. 
 

copied on this email, is Michael’s and can provide details for the office location and access (@697 Collins 
St). 
 
Regarding a meeting with Ralph in Canberra on Tuesday, I have copied him here and would suggest you and he 
make contact separately and find the time that works for you both. 
 
On the issue of others you might talk to, Michael is giving that some thought and will share some suggestions when 
you meet Monday (or by email directly before then). 
 
I hope that is satisfactory but please come back to me with any questions or concerns. 
 
Kind regards, 
Lisa 
 
 
Lisa Studdert  
Head Of Office | Executive 

 

Productivity Commission 
Ngunnawal Country 
4 National Circuit, Barton ACT 2600 
p  |  

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

From: Lou Will
Sent: Thursday, 16 February 2023 3:53 PM
To:
Subject: SES mtg notes [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL 

Hi 

As promised, here are my notes from yesterday’s SES mtg in case they’re helpful in debriefing the grads. 

Cheers 

15 Feb 

MB 

 Review into sexual harassment and sexism — Lisa msg — staff can go to the investigator. Very opaque
process, much unclear about how process will work (including whether subs will be confidential —
may mean want to be more circumspect in an email and invite a follow up or ask in an initial email),
nature of allegations, haven’t engaged much with investigator yet. Slow progress — maybe some
engagement next week.


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To: dr.neil.byron@gmail.com,  
Subject: Today’s news 

Hi guys,  
 
I feel as though this is a risk which perhaps should have been brought to our attention.  
 
Thoughts? 
 
Jenny 
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Lisa Studdert | Head Of Office | Executive | 
Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  
  

 

From: Jane Holmes    
Sent: Monday, February 20, 2023 2:22 PM 
To: Lisa Studdert   
Subject: RE: some questions from staff [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 

Hi Lisa 
 
I got our pay team onto this first thing, just in case.  
 
Last week there were 7 people on leave, and their leave continues through this week. 
 
This week there are a further 5 people on leave but their leave only commenced today, so if they wanted to reach out, 
I assume they had ample time to do so last week. 
 
These numbers are fairly consistent with last year (6 last week and 3 this week in 2022). 
 
I have another meeting so I’ll send through final comments on Natasha’s sheet after that. 
 
J 
 
Jane Holmes | Assistant Commissioner | Corporate Group |  
Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  
 

 

From: Lisa Studdert    
Sent: Monday, February 20, 2023 11:30 AM 
To: Jane Holmes  
Subject: RE: some questions from staff [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 

Jane, 
Just spoke to Natasha. 
She said she’s still doing some interviews this week so likely not to speak to management until next week. 
 
On the leave question, her concern is if we have an unusual number of staff on leave at this particular time they will 
miss the opportunity to respond to her ‘call out’ for people to contact her (I had thought it was more about her ability to 
contact the people she needs to interview). I said that I didn’t think we had an unusual number of people on leave but 
that I’d check and confirm. Is it possible for HR to pull some quick stats – how many people on leave last week? This 
week? And maybe the numbers for same time last year? Or some sort of comparison point. I would have thought any 
data from weeks in January would not be a good comparison point but open to suggestions. 
 
L 
 
Lisa Studdert | Head Of Office | Executive | 
Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  
  

 

From: Jane Holmes    
Sent: Monday, February 20, 2023 11:18 AM 
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
email   or our Employee Assistance Program (EAP).     
 
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
Tel:   Mobile   
Website: www.pc.gov.au|Email:   
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Marianna Olding

From:
Sent: Thursday, 4 May 2023 9:26 AM
To: FOI
Subject: FW: Request 001  FW: Guidance on Independent review of workplace culture at the Productivity 

Commission (the Review) [SEC=OFFICIAL]

 

From:    
Sent: Wednesday, March 15, 2023 3:09 PM 
To: Human Resources  ;   
Cc:  ;  > 
Subject: RE: Guidance on Independent review of workplace culture at the Productivity Commission (the Review) 
[SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 

Hi ,  
 
Thanks so much – will do.  
 
Many thanks, 

 
 

 
Schedule a meeting | Chat on Teams  
 

 

From: Human Resources    
Sent: Wednesday, March 15, 2023 9:54 AM 
To:  ;    >; Human Resources 

 
Cc:     
Subject: RE: Guidance on Independent review of workplace culture at the Productivity Commission (the Review) 
[SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 

 
 

Good Morning  
 

 
Thank you for checking with us – and here’s a few key points to have up your sleeve if needed.   
 

 An independent review is currently being undertaken, relating to an allegation of sexual harassment 
and sexism. 

 The Commission is fully co-operating with the review, and a report is expected to be provided to 
Treasury in the coming weeks. 

 Such matters are treated in the strictest confidence, so we are limited in what we can say – thanks for 
understanding this. 

 
 
Could you please let me know if you receive any queries/concerns with this approach.  
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Marianna Olding

From: Jane Holmes
Sent: Tuesday, 14 February 2023 10:38 AM
To: ; 
Subject: Senate Estimates [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]
Attachments: Discrimination and Harassment over time.pdf

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

Hi and 

Could you please send me some information for a back-pocket brief that Michael can speak to at Senate Estimates, if 
asked, on all of the processes/documents/evidence we have relating to workplace behaviour? 

For example: 

 Any suggestion of harassment and/or bullying is investigated.
 We have not had any complaints of sexual harassment or sexism.
 Census results show we have low comparative rates of bullying and harassment (refer attached slide).
 We have X% female SES.
 We reviewed our workplace behaviour policy in 2021.
 Staff have attended x training.
 We have an anonymous complaint form.
 Our exit surveys do not indicate that we have any issues with sexual harassment or sexism.

Please send me this asap today. 

Regards 
Jane 

Jane Holmes  
Assistant Commissioner | Corporate Group 

 

Productivity Commission 
Wurundjeri, Woi-wurrung Country 
Level 8, 2MQ, 697 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008 
p

pc.gov.au 
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Marianna Olding

From:
Sent: Wednesday, 8 March 2023 5:44 PM
To:
Subject: Re: AFR

 

From:   
Sent: Sunday, 5 February 2023, 5:07 pm 
To:   
Subject: AFR 
 
 
[You don't often get email from   Learn why this is important at 
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ] 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
 
Hi   
 
Hope all is well with you and the  . 
 
I still have PC in my google alerts, just out of continuing interest in the work that the Commission does. But one 
popped up on Friday in the AFR about a review. Hope it will not cause too much angst ‐ I’m sure you would have 
provided good quality HR advice as usual. 
 
I’m in the city every now and then to meet with colleagues at   who do some   
work for us. Good to catch up for a coffee some time. 
 
Cheers,  
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• The Commission was advised that an independent review will be undertaken, into claims of
sexual harassment and sexism at the Commission.

• The review will be undertaken by an experienced consultant and comes as a result of allegations
made to the Treasurer and Minister for Finance.

• The Commission will of course cooperate fully with the investigation as it proceeds.

• The Commission is committed to ensuring a safe and respectful workplace for all, and to
addressing issues as they arise.

• External review mechanisms are an important part of the APS’ ethical framework.

• All complaints, including anonymous complaints, are taken seriously.

• Please refer to the Workplace Behaviour Policy and complaints procedures for further information.

• Talk to manager if any queries.

Media and Social Media: 

Only the Chair, Head of Office and Commissioners are authorised to speak on the record to 

media. All media queries should be directed to the Media, Publications and Web (MPW) team to 

coordinate. For more information, please refer to the Media Handling Policy. 

As members of the Australian Public Service (APS), we have certain responsibilities. These are 

included in: 

agency policiDraft email (to SES & Supervisors) 

Hi everyone 

Noting the announcement on Friday that an independent review is being undertaken into claims of 

sexual harassment and sexism at the Commission, we recognise that supervisors and managers may 

be approached by staff if they have questions or concerns. 

Attached are some talking points which may be useful in navigating the conversation and addressing 

concerns. 

Yesterday, HR acknowledged the independent review in the HR induction with the Graduates and 

emphasised that the allegations are being taken seriously, and that they are encouraged to speak to 

their supervisors/managers or HR if they have queries or concerns. HR have also checked in with the 

Graduates’ buddy’s to provide them with a buddy guideline, and in recognising that staff wellbeing is a 

shared responsibility, that they can encourage new starters to speak to their supervisors/managers or 

HR if they need support. 

Please reach out if you have questions. 

Kind regards 

Your HR Team 

001-108
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Workplace behaviour at the Commission 

Key policies and procedures 

• Our Workplace Behaviour Policy, as well as the APS Values and Code of Conduct
framework provide the reference point for acceptable workplace behaviour.

o Our workplace behaviour policy places a positive obligation on all staff to support
and maintain a respectful, harassment-free workplace, including by reporting and
responding to any instances of unacceptable behaviour observed.

o It sets out the ‘continuum’ of workplace behaviour – which ranges from consistently
respectful conduct to disrespectful behaviour to harassment or bullying …

o …and also includes clear examples of behaviours, and legal definitions of key
concepts [such as harassment, bullying, discrimination and victimisation].

o As noted in the Foreword: This policy places a positive expectation on each of us in
terms of how we act towards each other – that we will always behave respectfully and
courteously in every interaction – no matter the situation, and certainly no matter the
role, level or personal characteristics of the people we are working with.

• A full review of our Workplace Behaviour Policy and complaints handling process was
conducted in late 2020 – early 2021.

o This review included extensive staff consultation and engagement, with a number
of ‘drop in’ sessions held to raise awareness and seek feedback on a range of
policy elements and procedural steps.

o In undertaking this review, we also considered the findings of Respect@Work1,
and adopted the recommendation to provide an anonymous reporting channel as
an important tool to encourage employees to raise concerns and facilitate early
identification of sexual harassment and intervention by employers.

▪ As of 15 February 2023, no anonymous complaints have been lodged via
our Anonymous Complaint form.

▪ And there are no formal complaints of sexual harassment or sexism in
recorded on our Central Workplace Behaviour Register.

• We offer regular training on the expected standards of workplace behaviour –
including:

o Biannual formal training to support a professional and positive workplace culture
[most recently run by Respect at Work in 2022, and WorkLogic in 2020]

▪ All staff and Commissioners are required to attend a session, and managers
are strongly encouraged to attend a separate manager ‘add on’ session.

• [In 2022, 132 staff attended the general session and 46 staff attended
the manager add on].

1 The Australian Human Rights Commission’s (AHRC) report of the National Inquiry into Sexual Harassment in Australian 
Workplaces 2020
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▪ Key aspects of this training includes the Commission’s expected behaviours, 
the APS Values, Employment Principles and Code of Conduct, and core 
workplace legal requirements such as bullying, harassment  (including sexual 
harassment, equal opportunity and anti-discrimination requirements) 

o Induction and onboarding requirements which include completing APS 
behaviour/integrity modules, and attending training sessions delivered by HR that 
covers the APS framework and the Commission’s workplace behaviour policy. 

o Specific training for managers and Contact Officers in complaints handling 
[last delivered in late 2021].  

• And as an APS agency, we have a range of other policies and strategies to promote 
ethical behaviour, manage concerns and support staff wellbeing [such as the APS Code 
of Conduct and PID policies, WHS policies/wellbeing support].  

•  

Complaints handling  

• Any complaint raised of harassment and/or bullying is investigated.   

o We are committed to considering and addressing complaints promptly and using 
the most reasonable and practical avenues to support all parties.  

o There are a range of ways staff can share any concerns, including via their 
manager, another manager or senior manager, our anonymous online complaint 
form, HR or their contact officer.  

o Our policy and practice provides for a range of ways to resolve issues – including 
options for local/early intervention, initial review, or a formal process for resolution.  

• Supporting the wellbeing of all parties to a complaint is a primary focus in addressing 
any concerns raised.    

o This reflects the complexities and sensitivities of such matters, including 
confidentiality/ privacy and procedural fairness considerations for all parties – 
including the potential impact on others in the workplace. 

o The use and disclosure of complaint information is strictly limited, within the 
requirements of any resolution processes – and all parties are advised of these 
confidentiality requirements. 

▪ Within the confidentiality parameters, individuals are provided with some 
information to reassure them that we have taken appropriate action to 
address issues impacting them. 

▪ Our policy and practice emphasises the importance of confidentiality and privacy in 
such matters. This is not to say that matters can’t be discussed, but the use and 
disclosure of complaint information is limited, within the requirements of any 
resolution processes. This requirement to maintain confidentiality extends to all 
parties (including complainants, respondents and others) before, during and after the 
complaint resolution process.  

▪ Where appropriate, individuals are provided with assurances that measures have 
been taken to address issues impacting them. 

▪ Where an individual has not made a direct complaint about their own workplace 
treatment, and it is not appropriate to continue to engage on discussions re matters 
related to other staff. 

o Individuals are also made aware of avenues for review if they are dissatisfied with 
the Commission’s handling of matters relating directly to them. 
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• Over recent years, the Commission has addressed staff concerns about workplace 
behaviour as they arise.  

o Any action is taken in a proportionate and appropriate way, supporting staff 
wellbeing and following principles of procedural fairness/natural justice. 

o Without breaching confidentiality aspects, actions taken to address concerns have 
included counselling, mediation, broader team reviews, and preliminary inquiries 
under the APS Code of Conduct framework. 

▪ NOTE: there have been no formal findings (such as a breach of the APS 
Code of Conduct) related to sexual harassment / workplace behaviour     

o The Commission has confidence that all matters formally raised have been 
satisfactorily dealt with.  

Our ways of working  

• Over recent years, the Commission has implemented a range of activities to support 
staff and further embed a positive workplace culture – including to clearly articulate 
the expectations of workplace behaviour and foster an environment where people feel 
safe and supported should they need to raise concerns.  

• Our performance capability framework emphasises the expected behaviours of all 
staff  [which are assessed through six-monthly formal feedback sessions]. 

o These are: Takes Responsibility, Acts with Integrity, Respectful, Collaborative, 
Open Minded.  

• Our position descriptions include positive obligations/role modelling behaviours 
as a requirement of all staff.  

o This includes detailing the Commission’s and APS values and our commitment to 
creating a culturally safe workplace where individuals feel respected and valued. 

o SES position descriptions specify additional elements as responsibilities/duties:  

o Fosters a positive workplace culture through promoting safe and inclusive 
work practices, and supporting effective performance. 

o Promotes the APS Values, APS Employment Principles and APS Code of 
Conduct, ensuring the principles of access, equity and diversity, staff 
consultation, work health and safety, are applied within the workplace. 
 

• Our diversity and inclusion practices include having a Workplace Diversity and 
Inclusion (D&I) Strategy, SES D&I Champions, ongoing L&D initiatives, staff networks, 
and continued engagement with staff on initiatives that aim to foster a positive and 
inclusive workplace culture.  

o We have a high representation of females in senior roles at the Commission. 

o In particular, at the SES level. As at 14 February 2023, 74% of our SES (including 
acting) are female – with 14 females and 5 males occupying SES roles.    

o  As at 31 January 2023, 58% of all staff are female and 42% are male. 

▪ At the EL 2 level, 49% are female and 51% are male. 

▪ At the EL 1 level, 65% are female and 35% are male. 

▪ At the APS 6 level, 50% are female and 50% are male. 
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• We regularly seek and act on feedback from staff, including through active 
monitoring of exit survey responses,  and seeking views and ideas on themes and 
issues arising from annual APS Census responses.  

o Staff feedback received through these means does not indicate a systemic cultural 
issue of bullying, sexual harassment or discrimination.  

o And our Census results over time show that we consistently have low comparative 
rates of bullying and harassment as compared to the APS-wide results – although 
we continue to work towards reducing this rate.  

▪ [From 2022 Census results email to staff: The figures 
on bullying and harassment, although low and not rising, are still above zero 
and therefore too high].    

 

Excerpt from Senate Estimates discussion – re specific complaints:  
 

Mr Brennan: I'm not sure what it is that has prompted this investigation. All I can comment 
on is what we know in terms of complaints that have come to us over the years. I'm aware, 
over the four years that I've been the chair of the Productivity Commission, of a very small 
number of complaints that have been made, not necessarily relating to sexual harassment 
per se. We're talking two to three in number.  

Senator BARBARA POCOCK: What actions were taken within the commission under your 
leadership to address these recent complaints?  

Mr Brennan: It's a bit difficult for me to canvass that here, given that there is this 
investigation and this process underway. I think, at least for now, that is the appropriate 
channel through which we need to focus these things. Suffice to say that, whenever we have 
received a complaint or any sort of allegation, we have investigated it and appropriate 
actions have been taken, but that can take a range of forms.  

Senator BARBARA POCOCK: Was any action taken following the speech by the 
commission's communications director in 2021 calling out the cover-up culture that protected 
perpetrators within the organisation.  

Mr Brennan: Again, I'd like to respect the process that's underway. No doubt these are 
issues that are going to be canvassed in the course of that investigation, and I think it's 
appropriate that we focus our responses through that. 

Senator BARBARA POCOCK: This question is not about any complaint or any employee; it's 
about whether you took action after a public communication by your communications director 
in 2021. Did you do anything after that public speech?  

Mr Brennan: We've done a range of things on an ongoing basis in relation to promoting a 
positive culture within the commission, dealing with complaints and concerns as they've 
arisen. I'll say yes, but I am uncomfortable about going into the detail of specific action that 
we've taken in this forum, when we've also got an investigation underway.  

 

 



• 

• Happy to provide an update on the Commissions work program, with a number of inquiries now 

complete and several new terms of reference landing on our desk. 

o We have three new public inquiries – philanthropy, early childhood education and care,

and the future drought fund.

o Work continues on Carer’s Leave and the Closing the Gap review.

o In December and January, we completed our reports to Government on Australia’s

Maritime Logistics System, Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Visual Arts and Crafts,

and the National Schools Reform Agreement.

o Last week we handed our 100th report to Government. This latest report, the 5-year

Productivity Inquiry, reviewed Australia’s productivity performance and recommends an

actionable roadmap to assist governments to make productivity-enhancing reforms.

▪ Commission staff celebrated this significant milestone across both our Canberra

and Melbourne offices with a joint morning tea and cake for all!

• 

• As you all know, Treasury has commissioned an independent review into the Commission 

regarding allegations of sexual harassment and sexism at the Commission.  

#001-110
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• Friday 3 February, the Commission, and the Australian public woke to the news in the AFR article. 

o At 9:22am, Michael sent an all-staff email alerting staff to the article and what we had 

learned the previous afternoon and provided a link to confidential support through our 

EAP providers.   
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We are confident in our policies, procedures and processes and take every concern and/or 

complaint seriously. Furthermore: 

 

o Any suggestion of harassment and/or bullying is investigated. 

o We have not had any complaints of sexual harassment or sexism. 

o Census results show we have low comparative rates of bullying and harassment 

(compared to the APS). 

o 76% female SES. 

o We reviewed our workplace behaviour policy in 2021. 

o Staff have attended training on workplace bullying and harassment.  

o We have an anonymous complaint form (this has not been used). 

o Our exit surveys do not indicate that we have issues with sexual harassment or sexism. 
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